
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board Sub-
Committee 

 Members of the Sub-Committee 
Councillor Philip Corthorne  
Councillor Douglas Mills  
Councillor David Simmonds  
Councillor Raymond Puddifoot (ex-officio) 
Shane DeGaris (THH)  
Dr Ian Goodman (CCG) 
 
Other Invitees 
Tony Zaman (Adult Social Services) 
Merlin Joseph (Children’s Services) 
Sharon Daye (Public Health) 
Nigel Dicker (Residents Services) 
Kevin Byrne (Policy, Performance & Partnerships) 
Ceri Jacob (CCG) 
Dr Tom Davies (CCG) 

   

Date: TUESDAY, 15 OCTOBER 
2013 
 

Time: 1.30 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 2 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting 
 

 
 

  
Published: Monday, 7 October 2013 

This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  

 Contact: Nikki O'Halloran 
Tel: 01895 250472 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: nohalloran@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available on the Council’s Intranet (Horizon) at:  
http://modgov-int.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=327&Year=2013 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use in 
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for 
further information.  
 
Electronic devices 
 
Please switch off any mobile devices before the meeting. Any recording of the meeting is 
not allowed, either using electronic, mobile or visual devices. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 

Agenda 
 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 

2 To approve the minutes of the meeting on 27 August 2013 1 - 6 
 

3 To confirm that the items of business marked Part I will be considered 
in public and that the items marked Part II will be considered in 
private 

 
 

 
Sub-Committee Reports - Part I (Public) 
4 Proposed BID Review of Health and Social Care Integration   

 FOR DISCUSSION  
 

5 Integration Transformation Fund and Next Steps 7 - 12 
 

 

 
Sub-Committee Reports - Part II (Private and Not for Publication) 
 
The reports listed above in Part II are not made public because they contain exempt information 
under Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as 
amended) and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing it. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD SUB-
COMMITTEE 
 
27 August 2013 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 6 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors Philip Corthorne (Chairman), Douglas Mills, David Simmonds and Ray 
Puddifoot (ex-officio) and Mike Robinson (in place of Shane DeGaris)  
 
Others Present: 
Karl Munslow Ong, Chief Operating Officer, THH 
Ceri Jacob, Chief Operating Officer, CCG 
Nigel Dicker, Deputy Director of Public Safety & Environment, LBH 
Tony Zaman, Director of Adult Social Services, LBH 
Sharon Daye, Interim Director of Public Health, LBH 
Kevin Byrne, Head of Policy and Performance, LBH 
Nikki O’Halloran, Democratic Services Manager, LBH 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

Action by 

 RESOLVED: That Councillor Philip Corthorne be elected 
Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-Committee. 
 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

Action by 

 Apologies for absence were received from Mr Shane DeGaris (The 
Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust) and Dr Ian Goodman 
(Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group).  Mr Mike Robinson 
attended as a substitute for Mr DeGaris.   
 

 

3. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART I 
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS 
MARKED PART II WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda 
Item 3) 
 

Action by 

 RESOLVED:  That all items of business be considered in public. 
 

 

4. HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

Action by 

 Consideration was given to the Sub-Committee’s Terms of Reference 
(ToR) and to the further integration of health and social care.   
 
NHS North West London and other boroughs had supported a 
“pioneer” bid to the NHS for the integration of health and social care.  
Hillingdon Council had not supported this approach as it was believed 
that undertaking its own integration project would enable the Borough 
to think more broadly and more long term and to act on behalf of 
residents.  
 

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



  
Whilst The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (THH) was a 
service provider, Hillingdon Hospital was recognised as a fixed 
reference point for health by residents.  As such, it was thought 
important to include THH in the integration work.   
 
Councillor Ray Puddifoot noted that it was imperative that significant 
headway was made in relation to the integration of health and social 
care by the new year.  A national budget of £3.8 billion would become 
available in 2015/16 for local health and care integration.  This funding, 
known as the Integration Transformation Fund (ITF), was not new 
funding as it had been drawn from local authorities and CCGs.  The 
amount of ITF funding that Hillingdon would receive would directly 
relate to the health and social care developments that were planned for 
the Borough.     
 
It was proposed that work be undertaken to examine the possible 
formation of a new form of service delivery organisation, providing 
closer co-ordination between clinical services and local authority 
services.  This could be in the form of a company limited by guarantee.  
To guide this work, it was suggested that the Council’s established 
transformation programme process (known as Business Improvement 
Delivery – BID) be used.  The process would look at the business 
model and determine whether it was supporting the process and/or 
adding additional frictional cost, burden and bureaucracy.  
Realignments could then be considered to offer improvements.   
 
It was suggested that BID work get underway in relation to the 
integration of health and social care.  With regard to the remit of the 
BID review, it was suggested that everything be included unless, during 
the course of the process, it became apparent that it did not need to be 
covered.  The scope was broad and the first task would involve scoping 
and discovery.   
 
It was suggested that improving services for residents should be kept 
at the heart of any changes that were made.  These changes could, at 
some point, potentially be broadened out to identify synergies with a 
view to joining services together.  Councillor Puddifoot suggested that it 
would be prudent to appoint an external individual who could then put a 
team together to look at the current structures and processes (with 
input from clinicians and officers).  The team would report back the 
Health and Wellbeing Sub-Committee and the Board with suggestions 
and proposals for consideration.  The Board would then be able to 
decide which actions should be taken forward.   
 
The starting point of the BID review would be to develop a shared 
understanding of what each organisation currently did.  Relevant staff 
(which would predominantly be those that delivered the services) would 
then be asked to highlight which areas currently worked well and 
identify those areas where improvements could be made.  A decision 
could then be made as to which areas would (and would not) be 
included in the review. 
 
Insofar as timings were concerned, it was suggested that the Sub-
Committee hold its next meeting in approximately 6 weeks as this 

Page 2



  
would give officers enough time to work through the scope.  The Head 
of Policy and Performance advised that the next steps would include: 

• further work to look at what other local authorities had done; 
• issues around governance; 
• developing a fuller Project Initiation document (PID); and  
• consideration of ADASS (Association of Directors of Adult Social 

Services) reference points regarding integration and possible 
tools to help with mapping.  

 
Consideration would need to be given to the business and processes 
that needed to be undertaken.  Action could then be taken to look at 
where improvements could be made and identify what further work 
would need to be undertaken to ensure that any resultant processes 
and procedures were easy to understand and use.  
 
To enable progress to be made in relation to the integration of health 
and social care, representatives from the CCG and THH would need to 
ensure that their organisations were happy to commit to this process.  
To this end the Council would attend governance board meetings with 
the CCG and THH to promote the proposal and provide information 
about the BID process.  It was important that the process took account 
of work that was already underway in the partner organisations.   
 
It was anticipated that, in ten weeks time, the Sub-Committee would be 
in a position to define the scope of the review more clearly.  
 
Concern was expressed with regard to how the Recovery Programme 
Board (RPB) would fit into the work of the Sub-Committee and the 
danger of duplicating work.  It was suggested that consideration would 
need to be given to resolving this potential conflict in the next 6-10 
weeks.   
 
It was also noted that much of the CCGs funding was already allocated 
to clinical services.  Those present were assured that the review would 
focus on who does what and that it would not be finance driven.  For 
example, consideration could be given to what other services could be 
provided from a new clinical centre and where operating costs could be 
rationalised.   
 
It was agreed that point seven of the ToR would be revised to reflect 
the fact that the Council would provide the initial funding to get the 
project off the ground.  Point eight would also be amended to include a 
reference to health improvements. 
 
RESOLVED:  That:  

1. the Council make arrangements to attend meetings with the 
CCG and THH to give further information about the BID 
process; and  

2. the revised Terms of Reference, attached to these minutes, 
be agreed.   

 
 APPENDIX - AMENDED SUB-COMMITTEE TERMS OF 

REFERENCE 
 

Action by 

Page 3



  
  

The meeting, which commenced at 2.30 pm, closed at 3.50 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Nikki O’Halloran on 01895 250472.  Circulation of these 
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 4



Appendix 1  

HILLINGDON HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE 
 Health and Social Care Integration  

 
Terms of Reference  
 

1. To consider the best method of delivering a better health outcome for residents of all 
ages in Hillingdon. 

 
2. To maximise the opportunity for new ways of working to deliver a more holistic service for 

the resident/patient. 
 

3. To consider opportunities and options for closer integration of health and social care 
services in Hillingdon to further improve the overall health and wellbeing of residents.  

 
4. Examine the possible formation of a new form of service delivery organisation providing 

closer co-ordination between clinical services and local authority services, not to create a 
new form of bureaucracy but a delivery vehicle to a new design. 

 
5. To assess the strengths, opportunities, risks and challenges that present through options 

for a more holistic and potentially integrated health and social care service.  
 

6. To assess the role of partners in support of integrated health and social care in 
Hillingdon.  

 
7. In view of the current financial constraints of the CCG and the Hospital Trust, consider 

LBH will provide the initial financing to get the project off the ground.  This project is 
approached on a business delivery basis with clinical input - reporting through the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.  A time commitment will be required from all parties. 

 
8. To make recommendations to the Health and Wellbeing Board in the first place 

concerning integration of health and social care and health improvements in Hillingdon.   
 
Membership: 

• Councillor Philip Corthorne  
• Councillor Douglas Mills  
• Councillor David Simmonds  
• Councillor Raymond Puddifoot (ex-officio) 
• Shane DeGaris – The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
• Dr Ian Goodman – Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
Officers: 

• Tony Zaman – Statutory Director of Adult Social Services, LBH 
• Merlin Joseph – Statutory Director of Children’s Services, LBH 
• Sharon Daye – Statutory Director of Public Health, LBH 
• Nigel Dicker – Residents Services, LBH 
• Kevin Byrne – Policy, Performance and Partnerships, LBH 
• Ceri Jacob – Chief Operating Officer, CCG    

 
Additional organisations and individuals will be invited to attend meetings as necessary.   

Minute Annex

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 
Sub-Committee report – 15 October 2013 

THE INTEGRATION TRANSFORMATION FUND: NEXT STEPS  
 
Relevant Board 
Member(s) 

 Councillor Philip Corthorne 

   
Organisation  London Borough of Hillingdon 
   
Report author  Kevin Byrne, Administration Directorate 
   
Papers with report  None 
 
1. HEADLINE INFORMATION 
 
Summary 
 

 This report provides an overview of a potential approach to 
prepare for and respond to the Government’s emerging proposals 
on integrated care and, in particular, the £3.8bn national 
Integration Transformation Fund (ITF).  It is anticipated that local 
areas will be required to submit plans on behalf of their Health and 
Wellbeing Boards to the ITF early in 2014.   

   
Contribution to plans 
and strategies 

 Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy 

   
Financial Cost  None directly from report.  
   
Relevant Policy  
Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

 N/A 

   
Ward(s) affected  All  
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Sub-Committee instructs officers and partners to consider the ITF guidance as it 
is issued from Government and to prepare evidence to form a potential plan.  This should 
include mapping existing integration activity and developing outline proposals for future 
integration, to report back at a further meeting of the Sub-Committee in December 2013.   

      
3. INFORMATION 
 
3.1.   Reasons for recommendations 
 
To enable preparation of a Hillingdon response to the ITF within anticipated timescales set by 
Government.   
  
Supporting Information 
 
At its meeting on 27 August 2013, Hillingdon’s Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-Committee 
considered its approach to closer working and integration.  It was noted that the proposed 
Integration Transformation Fund would require local areas to prepare evidence and submit 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



 
Sub-Committee report – 15 October 2013 

plans to claim money from the fund.  Thereafter, areas would also be required to demonstrate 
progress towards integrated care to apply for reward funding from later in 2014/15.   
 
Indications are that further guidance and a pro-forma will be issued by Government shortly.   
 
Financial Implications  
 
There are no direct financial implications arising specifically from this paper.  The integration of 
health and social care will have financial implications including offering opportunities for 
efficiencies, access to funding streams and potential costs and risks associated with new 
approaches.   
 
Legal Implications  
 
None at this stage but as integration opportunities are pursued, legal advice will be required.   
 
4. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
The Spending Round 2013 announced a pooled budget of £3.8 billion nationally for local health 
and care systems in 2015/16.  This is now being referred to as the “Integration Transformation 
Fund”.  The exact process for applying for the fund is yet to be announced but it is expected that 
there will be a pro-forma inviting local areas to demonstrate evidence as to how they are 
currently working together on integration and their aspirations for doing so moving forwards.  
 
4.1  What is the Integration Transformation Fund for? 
The Government’s stated goal is to get local health and care partners to work more closely, 
through creating a pooled budget in every area.  This follows the publication of the National 
Vision on health and care integration, which defined integration from the perspective of the 
individual.  The fund is intended to support an increase in the scale and pace of integration.  It is 
also a mechanism for promoting joint planning.  
 

Page 8



 
Sub-Committee report – 15 October 2013 

4.2  Where does the money come from? 
In reality, little of the £3.8bn is new money.  The fund is made up as follows: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The additional £1.9 billion NHS funding will be drawn from current CCG budgets.  Given existing 
demographic pressures and efficiency requirements, CCGs are likely to have to make cuts in 
existing services to release this money.  Although the basis on which this will be taken from 
individual CCGs is not yet clear, as an initial rough planning guide, CCGs have been advised to 
start considering how to free up around £10 million each.  
 
In addition to this £3.8bn, DCLG has included £188m in the overall grant settlement for local 
authorities for pressures from the closure of the Independent Living Fund and £285m for the 
introduction of deferred payments from April 2015 and the transition to the capped cost funding 
policies flowing from the Dilnot report that will take effect from April 2016 once the Care Bill has 
been passed into law.  The NHS has also contributed £70m to the Troubled Families 
programme. 
 
The Spending Round also announced a further £200m transfer from the NHS to social care in 
2014/15, in addition to the £900m already committed. 
 
4.3 How the funding will come to local areas? 
It is expected that the 2015/16 funding will be a pooled budget between local authorities and 
CCGs.  CCGs will use funds from their normal allocation to create it. 
 

£0.2bn additional NHS 
transfer 

…and £1.9bn of additional 
NHS money… 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£3.8bn pooled budget 
to be spent on health 

and social care 
according to locally 

agreed plans 
£1bn of this will linked 
to outcomes achieved 

… will be placed in a 
£3.8bn pooled budget to 
be used across the NHS 

With the troubled 
families money this 
makes £2bn additional 
NHS funding for 
integration 

£1.9bn of additional 
NHS money from 

current CCG budgets 
 

(This includes funding 
to cover demographic 
pressures in adult social 
care and some of the 
costs associated with 
the Care Bill.  £1bn of 
the funding will be 

performance-related)  

 
 
 

£0.9bn NHS transfer 
from SR10 and the 
2012 White Paper 

£134m ASC capital 
 

£220m Disabled 
Facilities Grant 

 

£300m reablement 
 

£130m for carers 
 

£1.9bn of existing funding 
from across the NHS and 
social care which is 
currently spent in areas 

N
H
S 

fu
n
d
in
g
 

LA
 fu
n
d
in
g
 

Page 9



 
Sub-Committee report – 15 October 2013 

This means that there will be no automatic transfers of any funding to boroughs, as has 
been the case with the NHS c.£900m annual transfers in recent years (s256 transfers).  
However, it will be possible for money to be transferred to councils by local agreement, as part 
of local plans.   
 
The basis for determining local shares of the £3.8bn has not yet been decided.  However, it has 
been suggested that the same broad splits as used for the s256 allocations is a reasonable 
planning proxy for most of the funding.   
 
DCLG is specifically considering how to handle the Disabled Facilities Grant capital element of 
the fund allocations, in the light of local authorities’ statutory responsibilities.  
 
4.4 Two year plans 
Access to the Integration Transformation Fund in 2015/16 will be dependent on agreement of a 
local 2-year plan for 2014/15 and 2015/16.  The plans will need to be agreed by March 2014. 
 
As well as covering the way in which the Integration Transformation Fund will be used locally in 
2015/16, the plans will also need to set out how the £200m additional transfer to local 
authorities in 2014/15 will be used to make progress on priorities and build momentum. 
 
The plans will need to be jointly agreed between key partners – as well as local authorities and 
CCGs, this will include local clinicians.  Health and Wellbeing Boards will have to sign off 
the plans.  
 
As well as being locally agreed, Ministers have decided that they will oversee and sign off the 
plans (DH, DCLG and HM Treasury Ministers all have an interest in this).  The LGA and NHS 
England are developing proposals about how this can be done in an efficient and proportionate 
way.  NHS England’s role in either local or national agreement has not yet been clarified. 
 
Joint LGA/NHS England guidance has been published clarifying that the plans should be 
developed in the context of: 

• local joint strategic plans; 
• other priorities set out in the NHS Mandate and NHS planning framework due out in 

November/December 2013 (CCGs will be required to develop medium term – currently 
expected to be 3-5 years – strategic plans as part of the NHS Call to Action); and  

• the announcement of integration pioneer sites in October, and forthcoming integration 
roadshows. 

 
4.5 The broad timetable for the plans is: 
 

October 2013 Initial local planning discussions and 
further work nationally to define 
conditions etc. 
 

November/December 2013 NHS Planning Framework issued 
 

December 2013 to January 2014 Completion of plans 
 

March 2014 Plans assured by Ministers  
 

 

Page 10



 
Sub-Committee report – 15 October 2013 

4.6 Conditions for the plans 
Indications are that funding will only be given on the condition that services are 
commissioned jointly and seamlessly between the CCG and councils, on the basis of their 
agreed local plan. 
 
The following national conditions will need to be addressed in local plans: 

• plans to be jointly agreed; 
• protection for social care services (not spending); 
• as part of agreed local plans, 7-day working in health and care to support patients being 

discharged and prevent unnecessary admissions at weekends; 
• better data sharing between health and social care, based on the NHS number (it is 

recognised that progress on this issue will require the resolution of some Information 
Governance issues by the Department of Health); 

• ensure a joint approach to assessments and care planning; 
• ensuring that, where funding is used for integrated packages of care, there will be an 

accountable professional;  
• risk-sharing principles and contingency plans if targets are not met – including 

redeployment of funding if local agreement is not reached; and 
• agreement on the consequential impact of changes in the acute sector.   

 
4.7 How will the £1bn performance-related element work? 
As part of their plans, local areas will need to set outcome goals and monitor delivery against 
these during 2014/15 and 2015/16.  £1bn of the total fund will be based on achievement of 
these goals.  This funding is likely to be unlocked in two tranches – half in April 2015 on the 
basis of performance in 2014/15, and the second half in autumn 2015 on the basis of 
performance in the first part of the financial year. 
 
The outcome measures will be a mix of national requirements and local choice.  The national 
requirements are yet to be determined, but early discussions include, for example, 
delayed discharges. 
 
4.8 Delivery through Partnership 
Both CCGs and local authorities need to recognise the challenges they face and work together 
to address them.  These challenges include: 
 

1) Finding the extra NHS investment required – CCGs are likely to have to redeploy 
funds from existing NHS services.  It is critical that CCGs and local authorities engage 
health care providers to assess the implications for existing services and how these 
should be managed. 
 
2) Protecting adult social care services – although the emphasis of the ITF is rightly 
on a pooled budget, flexibility must be retained to allow for some of the fund to be used 
to offset the impact of the funding reductions overall.  This will happen alongside the on-
going work that councils and health are currently engaged in to deliver efficiencies across 
the health and care system. 
 
3) Targeting the pooled budget to best effect – the conditions set by Government 
have made it clear that the pooled funds must deliver improvements across social care 
and the NHS.  Robust planning and analysis will be required to i) target resources on 
initiatives that will have the biggest benefit in terms of outcomes for residents and ii) 
measure and monitor their impact. 
 

Page 11



 
Sub-Committee report – 15 October 2013 

4) Managing the service change consequences – the scale of investment CCGs are 
required to make into the pooled budget cannot be delivered without service 
transformation.  The process for agreeing the use of the pooled budget must therefore 
include an assessment of the impact on acute services and agreement on the scale and 
nature of changes required. 

 
4.9 Issues that still need to be resolved 
There are a range of issues that still need to be clarified on which the Government, LGA, NHS 
England and other national partners are working.  These include: 

• allocation of funds; 
• national conditions, including definition, metrics and application (including whether the 

performance-related element of the funding will be based on ‘all-or-nothing’ achievement 
of outcomes); 

• risk-sharing arrangements; 
• assurance arrangements for national sign-off of the plans and subsequent monitoring; 

and  
• analytical support, e.g., shared financial planning tools and benchmarking data packs. 

 
 
4.10 Preparing for the ITF in Hillingdon   
Given the timescale for the preparation and agreement of plans, it is important we make 
progress in mapping the current position and in developing potential local plans.  Some of the 
issues that we should start considering are: 
 

• the basis that existing local plans and priorities – joint and individual – provide a starting 
point for their Integration Transformation Fund plan, and early identification of further 
analytical needs and joint strategy development so these can be got underway as soon 
as possible.   
 

• the implications of the way the fund has been drawn together on current planning and 
budgeting intentions, e.g., in CCGs the need to free up the additional money to put into 
the fund and for local authorities the need to recognise that the s256 monies will no 
longer form an automatic transfer.    
 

• the process for developing the plan and securing local sign-off, including through the 
Health and Wellbeing Board.  Hillingdon’s Board meets on 5 December 2013 and then 6 
February 2014.     
 

In Hillingdon, good examples of integration are already in place, for example in the Integrated 
Care Pilot work, through reablement and in rapid response.   
 
The Sub-Committee is, therefore, recommended to direct officers to explore these issues in 
more detail and, in light of emerging guidance, to report back to a further meeting of the Sub-
Committee in December 2013.    

Page 12


	Agenda
	2 To approve the minutes of the meeting on 27 August 2013
	5 Integration Transformation Fund and Next Steps

